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FRANCIS E. WARREN AIR FORCE BASE HISTORY

It was on the branch of the South Platte River, three miles west of what is today Cheyenne that Fort D.A. Russell was established in 1867.  Originally named in honor of Civil War Brigadier General David A. Russell, F.E. Warren AFB is the oldest continuously active military installation within the Air Force.  It is home to the 90th Missile Wing and Headquarters, 20th Air Force, of Air Force Space Command

Major General Grenville Dodge chose the site for the new post and tent town called Cheyenne. The 30th Infantry arrived first at the new site with the 2nd Cavalry arriving weeks later.  The post protected workers for the Union Pacific Railroad as they laid track to California.

From its early days, the post was also home to the famous “Buffalo Soldiers,” African American troops so named by Native Americans who likened their tenacious fighting spirit, courage and bravery to the spiritual buffalo. Buffalo Soldiers including the 9th and 10th Cavalry Regiments and the 24th Infantry Regiment, arrived at Fort Russell in 1897 to protect railroad surveyors near Camp Carlin.

In 1884, the Army designated the post as a permanent installation and began to replace the aging original wooden structures with brick.  From 1885 to 1930, over 220 brick buildings were erected; all remain in use today.  Because of the lasting integrity of the base’s historic architecture and setting, the central core of the base was listed on the National Register of Historic Places in 1975 and the base designated a National Historic Landmark.

The last expansion of the base occurred in the early twentieth century when large barracks along Randall Avenue were constructed.  Many of the early brick buildings were stables that housed nearly 20,000 horses and mules.  The base maintains the historic exterior of each building with appropriate interior modifications for today’s living and working environment.

The city of Cheyenne and the base traditionally have been very close, dating back to when troops from Fort Russell protected the lines of supply.  A mounted military escort led the very first Cheyenne Frontier Days in 1897, and the Field Artillery fired one of their cannons to start the daily rodeo events.  In 1938, the Cheyenne Frontier Days General Committee established a separate Military Committee to coordinate the tide of volunteer support donated by men and women from the base.

The base also played a role in supporting Wyoming’s “gender equity” tradition.  Wyoming is known as the “equality state.”  The phrase does not only refer to women’s right to vote, but also recognizes the first all female guard units.  The two “all girl” guard units formed in 1889 marched in Wyoming’s statehood parade.  They received their military training from the Army sergeants at Fort Russell.

-more-

What stands as quarters #2 today was in 1885 the Post Commander’s home.  By tradition, the Post Commander always occupied the largest house on post.  Hence, the commander moved into quarters #8 when it was built in 1903.  Quarters #2 was then assigned to the family of Captain John “Black Jack” Pershing, who later led American forces in Europe during World War I.  Captain Pershing married U.S. Senator Francis E. Warren’s daughter, but she preferred staying with her father when her husband was on campaign.  Due to the influence of Senator Warren, Captain Pershing was promoted to General within six months of his marriage.  Pershing himself was never stationed here.

The post was renamed in 1930 in memory of Senator Warren who was responsible for keeping the post open after the Indian Wars, and bringing new missions to the base.  Before serving as Wyoming’s first elected senator, Francis E. Warren served as territorial governor.

Other well-known figures stationed here include General Billy Mitchell (the “Father of the Air Force”), General Mark Clark (World War II general in Europe), General Benjamin O. Davis, Sr., (first black general), and Sammy Davis, Jr. (singer/entertainer).  Neil Diamond and Chris LeDoux (singers) grew up at this installation.  Over the years many other noteworthy people have passed through our front gate.

During World War II, Fort Warren was the training center for the Quartermaster Corps.  More than 200 wooden buildings were constructed without insulation and interior walls to temporarily house the expanded number of troops.  In the harsh Wyoming winter, waking up in these barracks often meant shaking snow from one’s blanket before heading for the just-as-cold communal showers.

Even though this installation became an Air Force base in 1947, the only air field ever at F.E. Warren was a single dirt strip.  This field, never used by modern day pilots, was made famous by World War I ace Captain Eddie Rickenbacker who crashed his plane on the field--and survived!

F.E. Warren AFB was initially used as a training facility.  In 1958, the 4320th Strategic Missile Wing was established with responsibility for the first 24 Atlas missile sites under the Strategic Air Command (SAC).  Although not the first designated missile wing, Warren became the first fully operational missile wing in the command.  On Sep 2, 1960, the 564th Strategic Missile Squadron was declared the first fully operational ICBM squadron.

Only two years later, the new ICBM Minuteman replaced the Atlas, and on July 1, 1963, the 90th Strategic Missile Wing was activated.  During the early 1970s, the SAC ICBM Force Modernization Program began replacing Minuteman I with Minuteman III missiles.  In November 1973, the 400th Strategic Missile Squadron marked the transition by becoming the first all Minuteman III squadron at F.E. Warren AFB.  The 90 SMW was selected to base the Peacekeeper ICBM in 1975.  Since 1986, F.E. Warren AFB missile fields have maintained 150 Minuteman IIIs and is home to the Air Force’s only 50 Peacekeeper missiles.

During a period of Air Force reorganization in the early 1990’s, F.E. Warren AFB transitioned from SAC to Air Combat Command, and finally, on 1 July 1993 to Air Force Space Command.  The 90th Strategic Missile Wing was also redesignated as the 90th Missile Wing.  The wing became the 90th Space Wing 1 October 1997.

Throughout more than 125 years, the men and women of F.E. Warren AFB have excelled as “Guardians of the High Frontier,” whether protecting a railroad or a way of life by providing strategic deterrence, the base has played an important and unique role in United States history.
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